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Loveland City Council 
Staff Report 

 
From:    Community and Strategic Planning 
Meeting Date:  December 7, 2010 
Re:   Application for Historic Landmark Property Designation, 901 N. Jefferson Ave. 
  
 
SITE DATA 
 
Address:   901 N. Jefferson Ave. 
   Loveland, CO 80537 
 
Request:  Application for Historic Landmark Property Designation 
 
Historic Name:  Lloyd House  
 
Architectural Style: Late Victorian 
 
Current 
Building Sq. Ft.: 1,415 square feet 

(Source: Larimer Co. Assessor Property Information, 2008)  
 
Construction  
Date:   1907 
     
Legal Description:  LOTS 11 & 12, BLK 1, ORCHARD PK, LOV 
   City of Loveland, County of Larimer, State of Colorado 
 
Owner(s):   Pamela Hackbarth 
    
Applicant(s):   Pamela Hackbarth 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMUNITY & STRATEGIC PLANNING 
Civic Center • 500 East Third Street  •  Loveland, Colorado 80537 

(970) 962-2577 FAX (970) 962-2945  •  TDD (970) 962-2620 
www.cityofloveland.org 
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Application Summary:  
On August 28, 2010 staff verified a completed nomination application for the landmark designation of the 
property at 544 E 4th Street. Staff mailed a notification letter announcing the date of the public hearing to 
the property owner of 901 N. Jefferson Ave., return receipt, as required by ordinance.  The Community 
and Strategic Planning Division also published notice of the public hearing for designation of the landmark 
property in the Loveland Reporter-Herald. 
 
Larimer County Assessor records identify the property by the following address:  901 N. Jefferson Ave., 
Loveland, Colorado.   
 
History: 
Source: Colorado Cultural Resource Survey Architectural Inventory Form prepared by Carl McWilliams of 
Cultural Resource Historians. 2010. 
 
In 1908, the Loveland City Directory indicates two couples living here, J. A. Bullock and his wife, Hattie; 
and Joseph A. Loyd and his wife, Gladys.  The property may have initially been owned by Joseph Loyd, as 
the Fort Collins Weekly Courier of September 22, 1909 records that J. A. Loyd sold this home, on Lots 11 
and 12, Block 1, Orchard Park Addition, to J. A. Bullock.  Born in December 1861, J. A. Bullock was a 
native of Indiana, as was his wife, Hattie (Bullington) Bullock, born August 31, 1864.  The couple was 
married in Hattie’s hometown of Alton, Indiana, in 1883, and had two children.  Their first child, Ida 
passed away in infancy in 1885.  A second daughter, Gladys, was born to the couple in August 1886.  
While in Iowa, Hattie Bullock supplemented her husband’s income as a carpenter through her work as a 
dressmaker.  In 1906, the Bullock family moved from Burrell Township, Iowa to Loveland.  Here, J. A. 
Bullock first went to work as a carpenter, the trade he had mastered in Iowa.  In 1908, he was appointed to 
replace P. H. Workman as special night policeman, earning a salary of $85 a month.   Bullock continued to 
work as a night marshal through at least 1916.  In September 1907, 21-year-old Gladys Bullock wed 26-
year-old Joseph Loyd, in a ceremony held at this 901 N. Jefferson Avenue home. 
 
Josiah Alonzo and Hattie Bullock remained in this N. Jefferson Street home through 1919.  On February 4, 
1920, the Fort Collins Courier notes the transfer of this property from Josiah A. Bullock to William E. 
Haskell, for $4000. 
 
William Haskell had purchased this residence in early 1920 to serve as the home of he and his wife, Mary 
J. Haskell.  William Haskell was born in Illinois in 1850.  Mary Haskell was also a native of Illinois, where 
she was born circa 1859.  The couple married in 1880, and raised five children.  In the mid 1910s, the 
family moved to Colorado from Marion County, Kansas, where the family had engaged in farming.  Mrs. 
Haskell’s husband suffered from dementia in his later years, reputedly the result of an attack of influenza 
he had suffered some years previously.  Sadly, in May 1921, when he was 72, William Haskell left the 
family home in Loveland and wandered away.  He was not located until the following morning, three miles 
south of Fort Collins, having drifted all night.   In July, Haskell was adjudged insane, and ordered by the 
county court to be taken to the State Institution in Pueblo.  It is likely that he died there shortly thereafter, 
as by 1925, Loveland City Directories list Mary Haskell as a widow.  Mary Haskell remained in this 
Jefferson Avenue home through the late 1920s., which she shared for several years with her widowed 
daughter, Mahala Bird, and her grandchildren, E. Louise and Earle A.  The widow of Louis J. Bird, 
Mahala Bird supported the family as a clerk at the J. C. Penney Store, located at 317 East 4th Street.  The 
family made a go of it, and her daughter Louise, upon graduation from Loveland High School, attended 
first Colorado State College and then the University of Montana in Missoula.  She received her Bachelor of 
Science degree in dietetics and foods from Montana State College in Bozeman, in June 1938.  On July 8, 
1939, this Jefferson Avenue home was the location of yet another wedding, when Miss Louise Bird was 
joined in marriage to Mr. Richard P. Nelson of Lewistown, Montana.  The young couple settled in 
Lewiston.   
 
Mahala Bird continued to live here until the early to mid 1960s.  From the late 1960’s to 1998 the home 
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was owned by 3 different families.  Jean Porter owned this property from 1976 until the current owner, 
Pamela A. Hackbarth purchased the home on August 1, 1998. 
 
 
Architectural Description: 
Source: Colorado Cultural Resource Survey Architectural Inventory Form prepared by Carl McWilliams of 
Cultural Resource Historians, 2008. 
 
This 1½-story Late Victorian era residence is supported by an unpainted sandstone foundation, and its  
exterior walls are clad with painted yellow horizontal wood siding with painted white 1” by 4” corner      
boards.  The house is covered by a steeply-pitched truncated hipped roof, with prominent intersecting  
gables on the east and south elevations.  Painted yellow and turquoise color, fish scale shingles appear in  
the upper gable ends.  The roof is covered with grey asphalt composition shingles and the eaves are boxed  
with painted turquoise and white wood trim.  A brown brick chimney is located near the center of the roof. 

  
Two hipped-roof dormers, each with a set of paired 1/1 double-hung sash windows, are respectively  
located on the north and west- facing roof slopes.  A non-original gabled dormer, also with a set of paired  
1/1 double-hung sash windows, is located near the west end of the south-facing roof slope.  The house  
features an asymmetrical façade, which faces towards Jefferson Avenue on the east elevation.  Two painted  
turquoise color wood paneled doors, each with an upper sash light, and each covered by a white glass-in- 
metal frame storm door, enter the south half of the façade from a distinctive Late Victorian era front porch.  
Both of the entry doors are at forty-five degree angles to the façade, while the porch wraps around to just  
cover the front southeast corner of the house.  This porch is approached by three sandstone steps, and  
features a painted turquoise tongue-in-groove wood floor, painted white Tuscan columns, and a distinctive  
truncated roof.  The home’s window are primarily 1/1 double-hung sash with painted white wood frames  
and surrounds.  Windows on the façade and near the east end of the south elevation also feature painted  
turquoise color wood awnings.  A single-story hipped-roof extension is located on the west (rear)  
elevation.  A painted turquoise color wood-paneled door, with one upper sash light, enters the extension’s   
west elevation, from three step wooden stoop.   
 
Significance: 
This house is historically significant for its association with residential development in Loveland dating  
from the time of its construction in 1907.  Perhaps more importantly, it is also architecturally significant  
for its Late Victorian era architectural characteristics, including its distinctive front porch, decorative  
shingles in the upper gable ends, and steeply-pitched hipped roof with intersecting gables.  The property’s  
significance may be to the extent that it would qualify for listing in the State and National Registers.  It  
also qualifies for local landmark designation by the City of Loveland, and  it would be a contributing  
property within a National Register historic district. 
 
This property displays a high level of physical integrity, relative to the seven aspects of integrity as defined  
by the National Park Service and the Colorado Historical Society - setting, location, design, materials,  
workmanship, feeling and  association.  There have been no additions and no notable exterior alterations to  
the historic residence.  The presence of a historic single-stall garage, with its historic bi-fold garage doors  
still intact, and a historic shed near the alley, enhance the integrity of setting.   
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East Elevation 
 
 

 
East and North Elevations 

Photographs:
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South and East Elevations 
 

 
West Elevation 
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Determination of Significance and Integrity 
Significance should be used as the starting point in determining eligibility for placement on a historic register.  
Significance has two distinct attributes – the “area of significance” which answers the question of context, or 
what is significant about a resource in terms of its association to agriculture, architecture, commerce and 
industry, education, politics and government, and transportation.  The Lloyd House is significant for its 
contribution to the architectural style of the period and for its demonstration of superior craftsmanship. 
 
The second attribute of the significance of a structure is its “period of significance” which places the resource 
on a historic timeline and answers the question of when a resource was significant.  As noted, the Wilson 
House was built in 1907, making it greater than 50 years old.  
 
Integrity refers to the ability of a structure to convey its original design or some later period of significance 
through the intactness of its historic form, original or historic use of materials, setting and site. Integrity has 
seven (7) particular aspects: location, setting, feeling, design, materials, workmanship, and association with 
some attribute of historic significance. 
 
A historic building, for example, that retains its original or historically significant setting with little or no 
visible modifications that diminish the ability to relate its historic association demonstrates greater integrity 
than a building that has lost many of physical historical elements.  A building with high physical integrity 
retains the following original or historically significant elements: massing; architectural detail; surface 
treatment; and windows and doors. 
 
According to the list of features described in the owner’s application, and which is verified by current 
photographs, the Lloyd House has maintained a good amount of its integrity, and is clearly distinguishable as 
an example of a commercial structure. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
To be considered eligible for designation as a historic landmark on the Loveland Historic Register, a 
property must be at least fifty (50) years old and must meet one (1) or more of the criteria for architectural, 
social cultural, or geographic/environmental significance as identified in Loveland Municipal Code 
15.56.090.  The Lloyd House satisfies the age requirement and meets the following criteria for designation 
as a Loveland Historic Register landmark of property: 
 

a.) Architectural  
1. Exemplifies specific elements of an architectural style or period. 
2. Demonstrates superior craftsmanship. 

b.) Social/Cultural 
1. Exemplifies the cultural, political, economic or social heritage of the community. 

 
Physical Integrity  

1. Shows character, interest, or value as part of the development, heritage or cultural 
characteristics of the community, region, state or nation. 

2. Retains original design features, materials, and/or character. 
3. Retains its original location. 

 
Given available information for the property at 901 N. Jefferson Ave., staff has determined that the Lloyd 
House exhibits both adequate integrity and significance to support its eligibility for designation as a 
Loveland historic landmark.  This determination is based on the Colorado Historical Society’s 
recommended framework for determining landmark eligibility (see Figures 1 and 2 below).  Staff 
recommends the Historic Preservation Commission recommend approval by the Historic Preservation 
Commission of this request for designation of the Lloyd House, located at 901 N. Jefferson Ave., as a 
Loveland Historic Register landmark property.     
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Attachments: 
 
A. Location Map 

 
 
 
 
B. Nomination Application submitted by applicant  
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